








1 

KAUA`I PLANNING COMMISSION 
SUBDIVISION COMMITTEE MEETING 

September 12, 2023 
DRAFT 

The regular meeting of the Planning Subdivision Committee of the County of Kaua'i was called to order 
by Subdivision Committee  Chair Gerald Ako at 8:35 a.m. - Webcast Link:  
https://www.kauai.gov/Webcast-Meetings 

The following Commissioners were present: 

Mr. Gerald Ako 
Ms. Donna Apisa 

  Mr. Jerry Ornellas 

Excused or Absent 

The following staff members were present: Planning Department - Director Ka'aina Hull, Planning 
Department – Deputy Director Jodi Sayegusa, Staff Planners Dale Cua, Kenny Estes, Romio Idica, Shelea 
Koga, Planning Staff Duke Nakamatsu and Kristen Romuar-Cabico, and Planning Commission Secretary 
Shanlee Jimenez; Office of the County Attorney – County Deputy Attorney Laura Barzilai, Office of 
Boards and Commissions – Support Clerk Lisa Oyama. 

Discussion of the meeting, in effect, ensued: 

CALL TO ORDER 

Subdivision Committee Chair Gerald Ako: Good morning, everyone. Thank you for being here. Today is 
Tuesday, September 12th, 2023, and this meeting is for the Subdivision Committee for the Planning 
Commission. Right now, it is about 8:35 a.m., and I'd like to call this meeting to order. Before we get into 
the roll call, Mr. Clerk, I was wondering, I just wanted to say thank you to Ellen Ching for letting us you 
know, use her place out there, and I guess it's nice to be home and to be here again. I hope you have more 
space and I hope you all have a good meeting today. I also wanted to mention the fact that you know, 
being right on the verge of 911, being that and yesterday I went to this event and the one thing that I kept 
on hearing was, may we never forget, may we never forget of what happened as well as coming off this 
just this disastrous fire out in Maui out there. And you know, I think the theme is the same thing and may 
we never forget and we maybe we never have this happen again. But I know this, that we forget. As time 
moves on, we grieve, we heal, and the next generation comes on and it's not as clear as it was for us 
today. And for me it's just a matter of, as long as we participate in the process, as long as we do whatever 
we can, we make it personal, then it's okay, and then that way we don't forget because I know today we 
have staff members from the Planning Department on Maui that has tremendously suffered from this too 
here, you know, and for us, I guess it's like family and all of that, whether they're on Maui or whether 
they're here. So, you know, I think if we get off the sidelines and we participate and we do whatever we 
can then I think at that point we can say we make it personal and we never forget. But with that Ka'aina, I 
was wondering if you can just take a moment of silence, just so that we can share our thoughts and our 
hopes with those that have suffered and are suffering right now. So, if we just take a short moment to 
share. And with that, I thank you. Mr. Clerk, if we can have a roll call, please. 

ROLL CALL 

D.1.
Jan. 9, 2024
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Planning Director Ka'aina Hull: Roll call, Mr. Chair. Commissioner Apisa?  

Commissioner Donna Apisa: Here. 

Mr. Hull: Commissioner Ornellas? 

Commissioner Jerry Ornellas: Here. 

Mr. Hull: Chair Ako?  

Chair Ako: Here 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Mr. Hull: You have a quorum, Mr. Chair. Coming up next, we have the Approval of the Agenda. The 
Department would like to ask for one slight adjustment. Recognizing that there may be considerable 
amount of time dedicated to…I apologize. Yeah. If we could take one agenda item out of order to adjust 
the agenda to say, have G.1. reviewed immediately after Receipt of Items for the Record. That would be 
our only recommended amendment. 

Ms. Apisa: Motion to approve the agenda as amended. 

Mr. Ornellas: Second. 

Chair Ako: There’s a motion that’s been seconded. If there’s no other questions, we can call a voice vote 
for this. All those in favor, say aye. Aye (unanimous voice vote). All those oppose. Motion passes. 3:0, 
Mr. Clerk.  

MINUTES of the meeting(s) of the Subdivision Committee 

Mr. Hull: Next we have the minutes of the meeting for Subdivision Committee June 27th 2023, for 
review and action. 

Mr. Ornellas: Move to approve minutes. 

Ms. Apisa: Second. 

Chair Ako: We have a motion and a second. All those in favor, say aye. Aye (unanimous voice vote). All 
those oppose. The minutes have been accepted, Mr. Clerk. 3:0. 

Mr. Hull: Next, we have no Receipt of Items for the Record that were received prior to the agenda being 
posted. Of course, after the agenda is posted, we have several pieces of communication that come in 
pursuant to certain guidance’s (inaudible) by the State. We can’t transmit that to you folks, until the 
morning of the meeting. So, you are all going to receive the packets from various communications. I think 
at this time, Chair, you were looking at taking a 10-minutes for the commissioners to review the packets. 

Chair Ako: We’re going to take a 10-minute recess to review what we’ve received. Thank you. 

                                            Subdivision Committee went into recess at 8:37 a.m. 
Subdivision Committee reconvened from recess at 8:46 a.m. 

NEW BUSINESS (For Action) 
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Preliminary Subdivision Map Approval 

Subdivision Application No. S-2024-1 
Jiro Yukimura Trust and Jennie T. Yukimura Trust 
Proposed 4-lot Subdivision 
TMK: (4) 3-7-006:002 
Hanama'ulu, Lihu'e, Kaua'i 

Mr. Hull: I’ll turn it over to the planner for the subdivision report pertaining to this matter. 

Staff Planner Kenny Estes: Good morning, Commissioners. I’ll read the report for the record. 

Mr. Estes read the Summary, Project Data, Project Description and Use, Additional Findings, 
Preliminary Evaluation, and Preliminary Conclusion sections of the Director’s Report for the 
record (on file with the Planning Department). 

Chair Ako: Do we have any questions for the staff? 

Ms. Apisa: No questions. 

Chair Ako: Commissioner Ornellas? 

Mr. Ornellas: Can you reiterate about the supposed historic building on the property? 

Mr. Estes: So, there’s an existing residence on the property that was built in the year 1888, it is considered 
a historic structure. 

Mr. Ornellas: Thank you. 

Mr. Hull: The commissioners are also going to see a supplemental communications submitted by Belles 
Graham and Associates. One, attesting to the full capacity build out of the property, they’re requesting 
that Section 1.L. be removed. The Department has no objections to that and will consider it a friendly 
amendment to our report. The communications also request concerning historic preservation that the 
structure itself is not subject to (inaudible) review, and that Condition I. be removed, which the 
Department also recognizes as a friendly amendment, and then concerning 1. A-H. also be removed 
concerning curbs, gutters, and sidewalks. The Department will also amend its report to reflect that the 
request from Belles Graham and Associates also requested that Items 1.J., that’s concerning the applicant 
should be aware that additional mitigations conditions aimed at mitigating or minimizing impacts to 
historic structures may be imposed for any proposed demolition of a single-family residence, carport, and 
storage shed at the time of building and zoning permits. They are requesting that that be removed as well, 
but the Department recognizing that the structure may not be subject to HRS 6 E review is still historic 
under the County of Kaua'i Historic Preservation law under Chapter 8, so we would not be on our own 
removing that condition, as well as Condition 5.A. Requirements of the State Historic Preservation 
Division. The subdivider shall comply with the requirements of the SHPD, if any, prior to final 
subdivision approval. Again, SHPD does recognize the fact that the structure will not be subject to their 
review, but any ground penetrating activities would, and therefore we would not be looking at removing 
that from our recommended conditions of approval, but again as stated, we have by verbal authorization 
are removing the other recognized conditions of approval. Yes, sorry, we actually should’ve taken public 
testimony ahead of Kenny's report. We don't have anybody signed up for this agenda item. Is there 
anybody that would like to testify on this agenda item that has not signed up for this agenda item? If so, 
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please approach the microphone. Seeing none. If you guys have any questions for the applicant. If the 
applicant (inaudible) presentation.  

Chair Ako: Please if the applicant would like to have their presentation. 

Mr. Max Graham: Good morning, Subdivision Committee Members. I’m Max Graham, I represent the 
applicant, which is the two Yukimura Trust and Joann Yukimura, seated next to me is the co-trustee of 
the two trusts. The applicant accepts all of the conditions as modified, if you have any questions, we’re 
happy to answer them. Joann did want to say something briefly, I think. 

Ms. Joann Yukimura: Thank you. Good morning, Subdivision Chair Ako and members. I speak to you 
today as co-trustee of the Jiro Yukimura Trust and the Jennie Yukimura Trust. My father, Jiro passed 
away in 2017, and my mother, Jennie, passed away last year. The terms of the trust direct me and my 
brother, who as co-trustees, to distribute the assets of both trusts equally. Among my four siblings. The 
best way to do this is to subdivide the 28,000 square foot residential lot that my parents lived on for 60 
years, into four lots. This will enable my two brothers who live on Kaua'i today to continue to live on 
Kaua'i and my brother and sister, who presently live off island to come back to live should they so 
choose. I want to thank Subdivision Planner Kenny Estes, and the Planning Department for their 
assistance in navigating the subdivision process. I have reviewed the recommended conditions and agree 
with them as modified and in the interest of time I will just submit my written testimony and ask that you 
read it. Thank you and I'm available for any questions you may have.  

Chair Ako: Commissioners, questions? Commissioner Apisa? 

Ms. Apisa: No, no questions. 

Mr. Ornellas: So, what becomes of the supposed historic building there? Is it slated for demolition or is it 
going to be moved? 

Ms. Yukimura: We were planning to have it demolished, because it seemed like it hasn't been kept up and 
it's, it seemed like that was the only option. We have received some interest in preserving the property 
and we would love to see that happen if possible. And so, we will be following up to see if we can work 
out something with that option, but right now it's not clear and my primary responsibility is a fiduciary 
duty to the trust. So, we have to see how that could all work out. And so, if it can, if it's possible in a way 
that. Allows us to meet the fiduciary responsibilities of the trust, so we have to see how that could all 
work out. So, if it can, if it’s possible in a way that allows us to meet the fiduciary responsibilities of the 
trust, we will work to have it preserved, if not, we will have to have it demolished. It's kind of a complex 
issue. 

Mr. Ornellas: Thank you. 

Chair Ako: If I can ask, just for clarification. In my mind you have one property you can subdivide and 
there's, your house kind of encroaches.  

Ms. Yukimura: It's a large house, and it would straddle. It would straddle the subdivision lines that we are 
proposing, so, it's a clear requirement that we have to either remove or demolish the house.  

Chair Ako: And that will be determined upon the determination by State Historic Preservation Division. 
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Ms. Yukimura: It's our understanding that that they don't have jurisdiction, there's an exemption, but 
apparently there's some county considerations under the county law, which I'm not really familiar with, 
but I presume our attorney Max and the Department will work on those. 

Chair Ako: So as soon as that is determined, then we can start moving on one way or another. As soon as 
the county makes the determination about that historic building or not. Then you can decide whether you 
going demolish or whether… 

Ms. Yukimura: Yeah, I’m not sure of the extent of the county jurisdiction, but whatever it is, yes. 

Mr. Hull: I can that the applicant has been in touch with not just our subdivision program, but as well as 
our historic preservation program, and the assessment is that for the historical integrity of a structure it 
needs to retain its, from its original concept, the structures been adjusted and amended so many times that 
it hasn’t been officially determined, and I can say tentatively the determination that its lost its historical 
integrity from architectural stand point is there. The state requirement their exempt from because it 
doesn’t apply to single family homes, but the County of Kaua'i Historic Preservation Ordinance 
recognizes that if it qualifies to be on the register for an array of different criteria standards set by the 
Secretary of Interior that it still is recognized as a historic site, and so, that’s not to say that Historic 
Preservation Program, once historical integrity is lost we’ll prevent the demolition from happening should 
it have to happen, but if demolition does occur, mitigation measures such as (inaudible), photo 
documentation so it can be recorded as well as perhaps a recognition plaque, or something to that effect, 
recognizing the historical significance of the site for any future land users. 

Mr. Ornellas: I’m assuming the condition of the building will be taken into consideration, I mean if it’s 
beyond rehabilitation then… 

Mr. Hull: Yeah, and that can be in this situation because the building had been adjusted so many times, 
even if the structural integrity remain, because of the architectural amendments that have been made to 
the structure overtime from a historical preservation standpoint, the architectural historical preservation 
standpoint, those adjustments if we keep on changing and building, changing and building, it essentially 
in the preservation eyes, is reduced its historical integrity and from just that piece (inaudible) and how 
many amendments had been made to the home, it’s tentatively (inaudible) that its lost its historical 
integrity, but again, the historical nature of the site within some of that criteria of the Secretary of Interior 
Standards will still recognize the site as historic, which is why mitigation and documentation may be 
appropriate. 

Mr. Ornellas: Thank you. 

Chair Ako: any other questions, Commissioners? Do we have a staff recommendation?  

Mr. Estes: The Department is recommending tentative subdivision approval. 

Mr. Hull: With the oral adjustments I made on the record. 

Mr. Estes: Right. 

Chair Ako: So, at this time I’d be willing to entertain a motion with the amendments. 

Ms. Apisa: I move that we approve Subdivision Application No. A-2024-1, the Yukimura Trust. 

Ms. Barzilai: With conditions as amended, Chair. 
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Ms. Apisa: With conditions as amended. 

Ms. Barzilai: Thank you. 

Mr. Ornellas: Second. 

Chair Ako: Okay, we’ve got a motion on the floor, we’ve got a second. Any other questions? If not, Mr. 
Clerk, can we have a roll call vote please. 

Mr. Hull: Roll call, Mr. Chair. Commissioner Apisa? 

Ms. Apisa: Aye. 

Mr. Hull: Commissioner Ornellas? 

Mr. Ornellas: Aye. 

Mr. Hull: Commissioner Ako? 

Chair Ako: Aye. 

Mr. Hull: Motion passes, Mr. Chair 3:0. 

Mr. Graham: Thank you very much. 

Ms. Yukimura: Thank you. 

Mr. Hull: With the indulgence of the commission, I’m looking at the size of the crowd and we’ll be here 
for several hours. I’ll ask the question, if you’d be willing to take two more agenda items which we 
anticipate to be relatively short out of order. The request that we review items G.2.A and B out of order if 
that’s appropriate. 

Ms. Barzilai: Mr. Chair, I would recommend that you suspend the rules to take those items out of order. 
You can just suspend the rules and proceed to take the items out of order. 

Chair Ako: Okay, if we can suspend the rules and take these two items out of order, G.2.A and B. 

Mr. Hull: G.2. Request to Terminate a Subdivision Application. 

Subdivision Application No. S-2022-9 
Hōkūala Resort Subdivision 1 
Tower Kaua'i Lagoons Sub 1, LLC. 
Proposed 10-lot Consolidation into 1-lot 
TMK: (4) 3-5-004: 100 to 109 
Kalapaki, Lihu'e, Kaua'i 

Mr. Hull: Kenny, you want to give a brief assessment of what’s occurring? 

Mr. Estes: Transmitted to folks through the supplement report, is a letter from the applicant dated July 27, 
2023, requesting to terminate their preliminary subdivision map approval for Subdivision Application No. 
S-2022-9, as represented the applicant is in the process of creating new subdivision maps for 1/3 acre lots, 
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and will submit a new subdivision application for the revised subdivision layout. Based on the applicant’s 
representations the Department has no objections to the request.  

Mr. Hull: The applicant is here. Do you have any statements, Mr. Siracusa? 

Mr. Gary Siracusa: I am happy to answer any questions from the Chair and Committee Members. Thank 
you. 

Mr. Hull: Any questions? 

Chair Ako: Mr. Clerk, on this one, I know we have one letter requesting the termination of the two 
applications, but we have two agenda items, is this something we can take together or is it separately. 

Mr. Hull: Because this agenda is separate, I think we ought to do it separately. 

Chair Ako: Thank you. 

Mr. Hull: With that, we don’t have anybody signed up for public testimony on this agenda item. Would 
anybody like to testify on this agenda item. If so, please approach the microphone. Seeing none. 

Ms. Barzilai: So, Chair, we need a motion on each subdivision application number. 

Chair Ako: Okay. With that, are there any other questions that we may have for staff or the applicant on 
application number S-2022-9? If not, I’d be willing to entertain a motion. 

Mr. Ornellas: Move to terminate Subdivision Application No. S-2022-9. 

Ms. Apisa: Second. 

Chair Ako: Okay, we’ve got a motion and a second. If there are no other questions, Mr. Clerk, if we can 
have a roll call vote, please. 

Mr. Hull: Roll call, Mr. Chair. Commissioner Apisa? 

Ms. Apisa: Aye. 

Mr. Hull: Commissioner Ornellas? 

Mr. Ornellas: Aye. 

Mr. Hull: Chair Ako? 

Chair Ako: Aye. 

Mr. Hull: Motion passes, Mr. Chair 3:0. Next we have. 

Subdivision Application No. S-2022-10 
Hōkūala Resort Subdivision 1A 
2014 Tower Kaua'i Lagoons Golf, LLC. / 
Tower Kaua'i Lagoons Land, LLC. / 
Tower Kaua'i Lagoons Sub 7, LLC. 
Proposed 2-lot Consolidation and Re-subdivision into 3-lots 
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TMK: (4) 3-5-001: 027 and 168 
Kalapaki, Lihu'e, Kaua'i 

Mr. Hull: This is the exact same letter that was sent in for request to terminate. Does the applicant have 
any statement to make for this application? 

Mr. Siracusa: Once again, Gary Siracusa for the applicant, I’m happy to answer any questions. 

Mr. Hull: Seeing none, we don’t anybody signed up to testify on this agenda item. I anybody would like 
to testify on this agenda item, please approach the microphone. Seeing none, Mr. Chair. 

Chair Ako: Do we have any questions from our commissioners? If not, I’d be happy to entertain a motion. 

Mr. Ornellas: Move to terminate Subdivision Application No. S-2022-10. 

Ms. Apisa: Second. 

Chair Ako: Okay, we got a motion, and we got a second. If no other questions, Mr. Clerk, can we have a 
roll call vote, please. 

Mr. Hull: Roll call, Mr. Chair. Commissioner Apisa? 

Ms. Apisa: Aye. 

Mr. Hull: Commissioner Ornellas? 

Mr. Ornellas: Aye. 

Mr. Hull: Chair Ako? 

Chair Ako: Aye. 

Mr. Hull: Motion passes, Mr. Chair 3:0. 

Mr. Siracusa: Thank you very much for your consideration. 

Chair Ako: Thank you. 

Mr. Hull: Next, we are on to Agenda Item, F.1.  

Preliminary Subdivision Extension Request 

Subdivision Application No. S-2021-7 
5425 Pa'u A Laka, LLC. 
Proposed 2-lot Consolidation and Resubdivision into 4-lots 
TMK: (4) 2-8-014: 032 
Kōloa, Kaua'i 

Mr. Hull: I’ll turn it over to Kenny. Hold on Kenny. I know we have a lot of people here to testify on 
these particular agenda items. So, just for clarification for members of the public that are here to testify on 
these upcoming two subdivision applications, during the subdivision committee you can provide 
testimony, and this will also be separately handled on the main Planning Commission agenda during the 
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appeal petition. You can testify in both agenda items or you can just choose to testify on one, so just 
wanted to make that clear for members of the audience that are here to testify on these two particular 
agenda items. We want to call for public testimony for those who have signed up and those who would 
like to speak, just be aware that there will be a second call for testimony again during the planning 
commission meeting for these exact same agenda items, so we’ll call for public testimony right now. 

Chair Ako: I think I’ll just reiterate what the Clerk has said that we will be taking this up at the scheduled 
9 o’clock, full commission meeting, so I just want to warn you guys, that maybe you don’t want to do it 
two times, your testimonies, so if you want to wait, we can wait until it gets to the full planning 
commission. 

Mr. Hull: Okay, so for S-2022-6, we have signed up Roslyn Cummings. If you could state your name for 
the record, and you have three minutes for testimony. 

Ms. Roslyn Cummings: Aloha no. Good morning, everyone. Thank you for giving us your time. Ko'u 
inoa, Manawai'akea, Roslyn Nicole Manawai'akea Malama mare Cummings, (speaking Hawaiian). On 
the record, for the record, I see that Laura is here as your legal representative. Good morning. I just 
wanted to bring forward the 'oia'i'o, the truth of what’s happening in the Kōloa ahupua'a, and how this 
subdivision towards the subdivision committee is affecting our people as kānaka maoli and I heard you 
guys bring up Lahaina in memory of the people who have lost their lives, and I want you guys to really 
think about the effects that these subdivisions cause when you start to develop more and more and deplete 
our waterways, our natural way of life, and also maybe think about what it's causing, increase of traffic 
increase in waste usage, waste management. I hope you guys all understand that we're already at capacity 
with the waste systems in Kōloa. There's also depletion of waters happening in the streams. I have many 
people coming forward that saying that they're coming in and piping all the stream, not all, but most of 
the streams in the Lawa'i ahupua'a, the ' Ōma'o ahupua'a for these developments and this particular 
development is going to be at the interest and the cost of the people that live here, but who benefits, 
mostly is the po'e haole, the foreigners that are coming in and moving into these luxury units and it's 
going to deplete and it's very peril to the kānaka maoli people who for 150 years have been displaced, and 
God created us all as equals as kānaka, as men and women, and I believe that sometimes you got to bring 
in the truth of what's happening. Not only is it increasing traffic, increasing the usage of our water, 
depleting our waterways, putting pollutions into our kahakai, into our oceans, affecting our precipitation, 
affecting mauka, it's also an increase in landfill. The county already knows this, so, I'm asking this agency 
to really think about the decisions that you're making that's going to affect manawa from the past and the 
present for the future generations. So, I thank you for your time. And have a good day. Mahalo.  

Mr. Hull: Next, we have signed up, Elizabeth Okinaka.  

Ms. Elizabeth Okinaka: Aloha. Mahalo for the time. For the record on the record. Since we have multiple 
times to testify, I first and foremost I would like to bring forward my concerns, as we know now that the 
tentative approval has lapsed for both these developments, and it's the same developer but, just first and 
foremost, I think we need to realize that this developer has been working illegally. They are owner of a 
multi-billion-dollar company, and they don't realize they've lapsed on these approvals. We filed a 
complaint back in 2021 when they were doing the same thing. They were illegally grubbing and grading 
that property multiple times and you know we came forward with that. We filed complaints, and I just 
think it's very, very concerning that these developers can't even meet their basic requirements and the 
truth of the matter is that they never got that final approval, because they never were able to meet any of 
those conditions, they couldn't show it, they couldn't prove it and we knew that was going to happen. Just 
like others have stated, I think for months we have been testifying that a huge, huge problem with these 
developments, there's no traffic, there's no concern for what's going to happen, if there is, God forbid, a 
mass evacuation plan. And this developer has drastically changed this area. I think we really, really need 
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to take into concern. In February you guys had a Planning Commission meeting where this developer 
came forward and he wanted to bypass his traffic conditions and it was granted, but he had already lapsed 
in that approval. So, I just stated for the record to please stop allowing this developer request bypassing 
these conditions and using these loopholes because it's wrong and they have never met with any of these 
conditions that they needed to, and there is a great, great conflict of interest here. Everybody in this room 
should know, there was a county agreement that was made in 2003, this was made on Christmas Eve. The 
County Attorney that approved that agreement is now sitting in this room today, and she's working for 
this developer. This developer is using that agreement as leverage against you guys, against the county, 
against the Planning Commission as a threat of a lawsuit, so I hope you know that we stand with you 
guys. Don't let these guys keep bullying you. Don't let them extort our natural resources and come here to 
solely profit financially off these projects and worsen the housing crisis and push out the local community 
while desecrating sacred sites, burial sites and critical habitat and cave ecosystem model. Mahalo. 

Chair Ako: Thank you. 

Mr. Hull: Next, we have signed up is Bridget Hammerquist. 

Ms. Bridget Hammerquist: Good morning, Chair, Members of the Subcommittee.  

Chair Ako: Good morning.  

Ms. Hammerquist: I hope you can hear. I just want to say that I don't know why we suspended Mr. Estes, 
from reading the staff recommendation, but it might help us with our testimony because I think if it is the 
staff recommendation that no extension of time be granted, that would be what we'd be looking for. I 
think that it's clear that this particular developer allowed both the tentative approvals to lapse, one lapsed 
in August of 22, the other lapse to February of 23. I joined Miss Okinaka and her testimony that they 
should not have been relieved of their requirement imposed for a traffic impact assessment report, the 
State Department of Transportation filed by a rather lengthy letter in 2014 pointing out the need to have a 
traffic impact assessment report on Kiahuna Plantation Drive. We have 1200 homes in there now with 
many occupants, and there's one road in and one road out, a small, narrow two-lane road. All 1200 homes 
that currently exist in there have to exit that particular road, so it is a hazard, it is a trap for any emergency 
situation, and I strongly suggest that we start at a minimum to relook this, relook this particular 
development and one of the best ways to start that is not to get any extension on their tentative 
subdivision approvals which lapsed as a matter of law (inaudible). Thank you. 

Mr. Hull: Next, we have signed up is Andrew Cabebe. Andrew? If you could state your name for the 
record and you have three minutes for testimony.  

Mr. Andrew Cabebe: Good morning.  

Chair Ako: Morning. 

Mr. Cabebe: My name is Andrew Cabebe. My kānaka is Kaninau. I know where all my land is on every 
island, but can I get to it? Why can’t I get to my land? Which seems to be the problem today for all of us 
in Hawai'i. What we going through today is unimaginable, but was told to me as a young boy, this is 
where we were going to be, this is where our food was going, this is where our health was going, this is 
where our country was going, this is where our land was going, our water, everything today all ruined 
because of the mismanagement of first contact. From first contact we were able to take care of ourselves 
very, very well, not like today, we have to depend on you to tell us what to do, and it should be the other 
way around. Are you listening to us today? We are calling you to accountability. Right? We are calling 
you accountability. What are you accountable for? What are the charges? What do you face today in 
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Hawai'i as we look to what is happening. We have a big view of what we do in Hawai'i today. As the 
people we protect what we have, and that is only our spirit, we just have our spirit today to depend on to 
keep us in the majesty of who we are. We are on this land to take care of this land. Everything, 
everybody. God gave us this land to care for, to feed everybody. This is the Garden Island, where is our 
part as a kānaka, to be a part of all of this. How do we be a part of this? 77,000 people on Kaua'i. We all, 
we all…if we not in pray, praying for the best today then where are we, where are we, and who got the 
best that is not giving us what we need. I know what’s going on, I was told about this as a young kid… 

Mr. Hull: Three minutes, Mr. Chair. Sir, if you could wrap up your testimony. 

Mr. Cabebe: …everything that I needed I was taught to grow. The farmers club. I just reminding you 
guys. You guys are being called to accountability, by the higher power. You guys all in prayer, we all in 
prayer today. We looking for those rockets to come. But Hawai'i going be the last place to go. I telling 
you guys right now. 

Mr. Hull: Three minutes, thirty seconds, Mr. Chair. 

Chair Ako: Thank you. Thank you very much, Mr. Cabebe. 

Mr. Cabebe: You guys, you guys think you get the last word, my braddah. I praying for all you guys, as 
all we get. 

Chair Ako: Thank you. Thank you very much. Thank you so much. 

Mr. Hull: Thank you for your testimony. For this particular subdivision agenda item, we don’t have 
anybody else signed up, but is there anybody else in the public that would like to testify on this agenda 
item, if so, please approach the microphone. If you could state your name for the record and you have 
three minutes for testimony. 

Ms. Terrie Hayes: Aloha, Terrie Hayes for the record. It's incredible to me that this continues in the way 
that it has, especially with all the legal, the obvious violations, the roads, I mean once those 1200 homes 
come out, where do they go, they can go to the right, towards the fire department, which is sometimes 
underwater, to the roundabout that one accident shuts it up or they can go to the left, which is covered by 
guinea grass and end up on the bypass where they think they're going to build trusses and put trucks in. 
Our dear friend and I would like to just…was hit on his bicycle. He's lived here for over 40 years. Jim 
Phillips is currently in the hospital on O ' ahu because of a builder rushing up a little street in Po'ipū  
where dear Jim rode all the time. So please pray for him because he was seriously injured and to me it's 
just the blatant disregard that people are trying to talk to you about, the people that live here, we live here. 
Billy's lived here his whole life. His father is from Ni'ihau, asked him what he thinks we should be doing. 
We're here doing what we do because we were made to do it. You know, Kāneiolouma has a designation 
as a historical site that we are the stewards of to protect it and everything around it, I mean it's…I get 
anxiety, I'm sorry this morning, especially driving up and seeing all the dried guinea grass that is on 
Grove Farm property that's on Knudsen property. Why aren't they taking care of it, maybe the county 
doesn't have the resources, but they surely do, and it needs to be addressed immediately. Billy said, “what 
do they think we're just going to have another fire here”. And where would they go because we don't have 
that nice (inaudible) Lahaina. You know it's dangerous to go into…it’s, it’s incredible to me that these 
considerations are being made without the effects of what's really going to happen, like they're saying, 
like Liz is saying. We're so short sighted, you're short sighted. I'm sorry to say so. If you don't address the 
real issues that are at hand here, which is overdevelopment too much traffic. Where is the septic and 
sewage going? Where does it go? We asked at the Climate Conference of the Climate Committee for 
cultural preservation. Bless that girl and I hope her family survived on Maui. She could barely even talk 
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to us, but it's just to me, and that was only a month ago and it's like, ok, well down the road, everything 
let's just keep moving along the way we've been going, it's not appropriate any longer. Smoking used to 
be legal at one point they thought it was ok too. You gotta change with the information. Thank you. 
Mahalo. Aloha. 

Chair Ako: Thank you very much. 

Mr. Hull: Again, we don’t have any other individuals signed up to testify. State your name for the record 
and you have three minutes for testimony. 

Ms. Nakai'elua Villatora: Aloha mai ka kou, o Nakai'elua Villatora ko'u inoa no ka record. (Speaking 
Hawaiian). I wanted to just state my testimony as in opposition for this proposal for the applicant to be 
able to extend it’s time on the permitting because of the fact that when developers like his particular 
applicant is wanting to extend their projects so that they can continue to get away with desecration of iwi 
kūpuna, desecration of 'aina, the depletion of our natural resources, our kumu Waiwai. It really is 
detrimental to our kānaka maoli and not only the kānaka maoli people but just people in general. Like, 
kind of example, what happened to Lahaina in August, it really puts into perspective for not only other 
islands but all over the world about what these kind of commissions, what your folks decisions are that 
will affect our future, and for me, I’m a makuahine, I’m a mother and I see that the decisions that you 
folks make and that this department has made in the past is going to make a great impact on our 
environment and for the future and for me, I'm very, very scared for for my children, for my 
grandchildren, for all the children, because it breaks my heart to see that lives have to be sacrificed for the 
advancement of greed and corporate interests, and when it comes to it, as people, as humans, we have the 
right to have a life with fresh water and abundancy of our natural resources so that we can continue to 
live, and as kānaka we have that in our laws back in the 1800s in the kingdom, so understanding that the 
choices that you folks make, that this department makes really will influence the kind of examples, 
kalamai my for my keiki. Yeah, that's my keikis down there and I just wanted to thank you folks for. This 
time and colorfully, that's it for today. Mahalo. 

Mr. Hull: Thank you. If you can state your name for the record and you have three minutes for testimony.  

Ms. Ana Mo Des: Aloha, mahalo, good morning. My name is Ana Mo Des. Thank you for being here this 
morning for volunteering for this position, and I was grateful to hear that you are all advising against this 
extension being granted to this developer. There is no way that two laws can exist that contradict each 
other. For instance, in capitalism, you're not allowed to profit off of exploitation. It's what's resulting in so 
many of the issues that the community is stepping forward to share. The way that you can realistically 
imply that is through these protocols that developers must operate on. For instance, having an 
environmental assessment and other factors taking into consideration the native Hawaiian and the cultural 
implications, there is a cultural study that must be done, and it's just three-step process so, for this 
particular parcel there was only an inventory cultural assessment, the first step, there was never a data 
recovery process where a team goes in and analyzes each of the significant artifacts, heiau’s, burials, 
whatever the potential is that was there. This was land that was previously undeveloped, undisturbed and 
there was machinery that went in without cultural monitors present because the three process of the 
cultural survey was not done. You all should understand that the community has paid attention to this 
particular parcel for a reason. There's a lot of value there and it should have been respected in a way to 
honor the protocols that the developers must do in order to build, operate, and profit. So, this isn't about 
being against the visitor industry that provides work and civility for so many residents. This is about 
balancing what is appropriate, what is proper, what is pono, and there are rules in place in order to have 
you all facilitate that for the community to make sure that we are the ones that are not implicated by 
everything that has been mentioned previously by testifiers. So, the simple fact that the developer did not 
honor these certain protocol covers you, so if they do want to come forward and sue the county or 
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whatever they're threatening, you're covered because you're following the rules and that is enough of a 
basis to not implicate yourselves as a county that you are making sure that these developers are following 
the rules in order to do what their business plan entails, this developer for certain has not, and there is 
evidence, there is documentation of this, so feel comfortable standing firm.  

Mr. Hull: Three minutes, Mr. Chair. 

Ms. Mo Des: Thank you, Director. I'll wrap it up very quickly. Actually, I'll just come back next time, 
thank you. 

Chair Ako: Thank you. 

Mr. Hull: Again, if there’s anybody who would like to testify on this specific agenda item, we don’t have 
anymore signed up, but please approach the microphone. Seeing none, I’ll turn it over to Kenny for a 
report on this matter. 

Mr. Estes: Just to clarify this is for Subdivision Application No. S-2021-7. Transmitted it to the Planning 
Commission through Supplement #1 to Subdivision Report, is a letter from the Department, dated August 
21st, 2023, that was a mailed to the applicant stating that on August 10th, 2021, the above referenced 
subdivision received Tentative Preliminary Map Approval in accordance with the Kaua'i County Code, 
Section 9-3.8 C.1. Final Subdivision Map, applicant failed to timely file with the Department a 
Subdivision Final Map, or a request for an extension of time prior to the preliminary subdivision map 
expiration. The preliminary subdivision map is therefore deemed void as a matter of law. The Department 
is requesting that the subject correspondents be received for the record. 
 
Chair Ako: Do we have any questions for staff at this time? Is there anybody from that applicant that 
would like to present now knowing that it's going to be coming up again in the full Planning Commission. 

Ms. Barzilai: Excuse me, Chair. Does that indicate that at this time you’re going to be taking action on the 
request for extension of time? If we're going to be taking substantive argument and position from the 
applicants.  

Chair Ako: No. 

Ms. Barzilai: You can proceed to do that if you wish. 

Mr. Hull: I think one approach, Chair, is the confusion of when the Department has issued a 
determination that the application is void because it missed the deadline that the Commission could 
essentially receive that determination. Ultimately, the applicant is in the upcoming full Planning 
Commission meeting, appealing that determination. So, it's really at the discretion of the Commission 
really. 

Ms. Barzilai: So, the Commission right now can take action, the full Commission can take action on the 
request for extension of time. You can take action on this as well and report on it, or you can defer it until 
the full Planning Commission meeting. 

Chair Ako: Okay.  

Ms. Barzilai: To be handled together with the appeal. 

Ms. Apisa: So, I would like to make a motion to defer it to the full Planning Commission. 
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Chair Ako: Okay. 

Mr. Ornellas: Second. 

Chair Ako: Okay, so we’ve got a motion and a second. Any other questions that we want to bring up right 
now between the commissioners, if not, Mr. Clerk, can we take a voice vote on this? Yeah. So, all those 
in favor of the motion, say aye. Aye (unanimous voice vote). All those oppose. 3:0. Okay, we shall defer 
this to the full… 

Mr. Hull: Full Planning Commission meeting, as a whole. Next, we have Agenda Item F.1.B.  

Subdivision Application No. 5-2022-6 
Kukui'ula Development Company, LLC. / 
MP Kaua'i HH Development Fund, LLC. 
Kukui'ula Parcel HH Subdivision 
Proposed 3-lot Consolidation and Resubdivision into 51-lots  
TMK: (4) 2-6-019: 026, 029, 031 
Koloa, Kaua'i 

Mr. Hull: We’ll take public testimony at this time, again, like the previous one, if members of the public 
would like to testify on this agenda item, just so that you’re aware it will be coming up at the full 
Planning Commission meeting. You’re free to testify on both agenda items, but if you’d like to defer it to 
the later meeting that’s fine as well, so I’ll call those who have signed up. Rosalyn Cummings. 

Ms. Cummings: I’ll defer. 

Mr. Hull: Elizabeth Okinaka. 

Ms. Okinaka: Aloha. For the record on the record. I’ll be really brief, and I’ll go up again, but just wanted 
to again state that this is another development from the same developer, who has again lapsed on their 
approval. There's also been work on this property done illegally. There's been multiple heavy machinery 
advertisements up, already trying to sell these properties and entice people to put down payments and just 
once again, that these developers have not been truthful to the community. This is another culturally 
significant site where there are caves, there are lava tubes, possible burials, possible critical habitats, and 
very similar to the other property that this same developer has desecrated. Mahalo. 

Chair Ako: Thank you. 

Mr. Hull: Next we have signed up, Bridget Hammerquist. 

Ms. Hammerquist: I’ll defer to the main agenda. Thank you for your service. 

Mr. Hull: Okay. We have no other individual signed up, but if you would like to testify on this agenda 
item, you may approach the microphone. Just state your name and you have three minutes for testimony. 
Seeing none, I'll turn it back over to Kenny for a brief report pertaining to this matter. 

Mr. Estes: Transmitted to the Planning Commission through Supplement Report #1 to the Subdivision 
Report is the letter from the Department dated August 21st, 2023, that was mailed to the applicant, stating 
that on February 8th, 2022, the above referenced subdivision received revised tentative preliminary map 
approval. In accordance with Kaua'i County Code Section 9-3.8 C1 final subdivision map applicant failed 
to timely file with the Department a subdivision final map or a request for an extension of time prior to 
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the preliminary subdivision map expiration. The preliminary subdivision map is therefore deemed void as 
a matter of law. The Department is requesting that the subject correspondence we received for the record. 

Chair Ako: So, with that, if we can entertain a motion to defer. 

Ms. Apisa: To defer. I move to defer Subdivision Application No. S-2022-6 to the full Commission 
meeting. 

Mr. Ornellas: Second. 

Chair Ako: Okay. We got a motion; we got a second. We’ll take a voice vote. All those in favor say aye. 
Aye (unanimous voice vote). All those oppose. Mr. Clerk, the motion passes. 3:0.  

Mr. Hull: With that we have no further agenda items. 

Chair Ako: With that, I thank you for all your testimony, and thank you staff for putting all this together 
and the Commissioners, thank you for your time. I’ll entertain a motion to adjourn. 

Mr. Ornellas: Move to adjourn. 

Ms. Apisa: Second. 

Chair Ako: All those in favor say aye. Aye (unanimous voice vote). Meeting is adjourned. 3:0. 

 

Chair Ako adjourned the meeting at 9:38 a.m. 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                                                                                      Respectfully submitted by: 
 

_______________________ 
             Lisa Oyama, 
  Commission Support Clerk 

 
 
 
 
 
( ) Approved as circulated (add date of meeting approved). 
 
( ) Approved as amended. See minutes of _________meeting. 
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CONDITIONS OF TENTATIVE APPROVAL: S-2005-41 

1. Requirements of the Planning Department:

a. An updated preliminary title report shall be submitted to the Planning Department
for review.

b. The Applicant shall resolve with the State Highways Division the establishment of a
future road widening reserve along the frontage of Ka pule Highway and Ahukini
Road. Should a reserve be required, it shall be subject to the specifications of the
State Highways Division. There shall be no new structures permitted within the
reserve, and any new structures should be setback from the reserve. The reserve
along with its restrictions shall be incorporated into the deed descriptions of the
affected lots, draft copies of which shall be submitted to the Planning Department
for review and approval.

c. All existing and proposed easements shall be identified in the deed descriptions of
affected lots and shown on the final subdivision map. Draft copies of the deed
descriptions shall be submitted to the Planning Department for review and approval.

d. The Applicant is made aware that the streets designated within the subdivision must
be officially named before the Department approves the construction plans. Street
names should be in Hawaiian and be submitted to our Department for review and
approval, along with a request letter and 12 maps (on 8½" x 14" paper). The maps
should be detailed such that emergency vehicles, police services, postal deliveries,
etc., are able to locate the street. References to roadway, such as the highway and
other surrounding roads, should be shown on the street-naming map.

e. The Applicant shall prepare and obtain construction plan approvals for necessary
road, water, drainage, electrical and telephone utilities and facilities, and either
construct the same or post a surety bond for completion.

f. There shall be no direct access permitted onto Kapule Highway and Ahukini Road
from any of the lots within the proposed subdivision. Semi-circles denoting no
direct access permitted shall be shown on the final subdivision map. This provision
shall be incorporated as a restrictive covenant for the subject lots, draft copies of
which shall be submitted to the Planning Department for review and approval.

g. The Applicant shall be subject to the applicable requirements of Ordinance No. PM-
326-96. Specifically, the following conditions shall apply to this subdivision:

Conditions of Ordinance No. PM-326-96: 

• 4. (EIA credit)
• 6. ( design criteria outlined in "Draft Urban Design Plan")
• 7. (park master plan)
• 8. (roadway system)
• 10. ( construction material disposal site)
• 11. (solid waste landfill site)
• 12. (intersection improvements)
• 13. ( civil defense infrastructure)
• 14. (affordable housing requirements)
• 15. (infrastructure master plan)
• 17. (density)
• 19. (no development zone)
• 21. (status report)

h. Relative to the requirements/standards setforth in Ordinance No. 777, the subdivider
shall resolve with the Planning Department the provision of public access.

If public access is required, the applicant shall propose an access plan identifying the
access location(s) for the review and approval of the Planning and Public Works

S-2005-41; Sub Report (REVISED)
Visionary LLC. (Ahukini Makai)
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DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING 
KA'AINA HULL, DIRECTOR

JODI A. HIGUCHI SAVEGUSA, DEPUTY DIRECTOR

DATE: December 26, 2023 

SUPPLEMENT #1 TO 

SUBDIVISION REPORT 

RE: Subdivision Application No. S-2005-41 
(Ahukini Makai Subdivision) 

APPLICANT: Visionary, LLC. 

Background 

DEREK S.K. KAWAKAMI, MAYOR 

REIKO MATSUYAMA. MANAGING DIRECTOR 

At the Planning Commission Meeting held on May 9, 2023, the subject subdivision application was 
featured as an agenda item OI) the Subdivision Committee's agenda for Final Subdivision Map Approval. 
During the meeting there were concerns raised regarding the requirement and submission of a Ka 
Pa'akai O Ka'aina Analysis for the project area. Consequently, the Planning Commission voted to refer 
the subdivision application back to the Subdivision Committee, pending the submission of a Ka Pa'akai O 
Ka'aina Analysis. 

On December 6, 2023, the Applicant submitted a Ka Pa'akai O Ka'aina Analysis for project area, and it is 
attached as Exhibit 'A' for the Planning Commission's reference. 

Evaluation and Conclusion 

A Ka Pa'akai O Ka'aina Analysis was prepared by Cultural Surveys Hawai'i, Inc. for the proposed 
development. The analysis describes the historic and traditional accounts associated with the 
Hanama'ulu Ahupua'a as well as provides a summary of archaeological studies that have been 
conducted in the vicinity of the project area. The analysis also provides a detailed summary of the 
community outreach that was conducted including oral and written testimony of individuals that were 
contacted. 

The consultation outreach involved attempting to contact Hawaiian organizations, agencies, and 
community members as well as cultural and lineal descendants in order to identify individuals with 
cultural expertise and/or knowledge of the project area and vicinity. Community outreach letters were 
sent to 37 individuals or groups by email and/or U.S. Postal Service with additional follow-up by text or 
phone. As represented, Cultural Surveys Hawaii completed the community consultation in July 2023 and 
ten {10) individuals had responded in which two provided written testimony, and two of these 
Kama'aina and/or Kupuna met with Cultural Surveys Hawaii for more in-depth interviews. 

4444 Rice Street, Suite A473 • Lihu'e, Hawai'i 96766 • (808) 241-4050 (b) • (808) 241-6699 (f) 

An Equal Opportunity Employer 

F.1.a.2.
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Based on the information contained in the analysis and evaluating the historical information that was 
available to the department, the department finds that the proposed development at its designated 
location should have no impact on any known Hawaiian traditional or customary practices for the 
following reasons: 

o There are no known traditional or customary practices of Native Hawaiians that are presently
occurring at the project site.

o There are no known special gathering practices taking place or resources located at the project
site or within the vicinity of the project site.

o The Project should not detrimentally inhibit access to any streams; access to the shoreline or
other adjacent shoreline areas; gathering along any streams, the shoreline or in the ocean.

o There are no records of trails running through the Ahukini Makai Subdivision project area.
o There are no known religious practices taking place within the project site.
o There are no known pre-contact cultural or historic sites or resources located within the Project

Site.
o There are no known burials within the Project Area.

The analysis also discussed concerns regarding the indirect adverse impacts to the 'aina, wai, and kai of 
Hanama'ulu by project-related erosion or wastewater management. As discussed in the analysis, the 
County of Kaua'i has a drainage policy that applies to development projects. A drainage report was 
prepared for this project and approved by the County of Kaua'i. Based on the proposed grading and 
drainage improvement designs, the post-development drainage conditions will be less than the pre
development drainage conditions. 

Recommendation 

Following the evaluation and conclusion outlined above, the department maintains its recommendation 
of Final Subdivision Map Approval for Subdivision Application No. S-2005-41, as recommended at the 
Planning Commission Meeting held on May 9, 2023. 
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Cultural Surveys Hawai'i Job Code: HANAMAULU 15 Management Summary 

Management Summary 

Reference Ka Pa'akai Analysis for the Ahukini Makai Subdivision Project, 
Hanama'ulu Ahupua'a, Lihu'e District, Kaua'i, TMK: (4) 3-7-002:001 
(Tanaka et al. 2023) 

Date December 2023 

Project Number(s) Cultural Surveys Hawai'i, Inc. (CSH) Job Code: HANAMAULU 15 

Agencies County ofKaua'i Department of Planning 

Land Jurisdiction Private, Visionary LLC 

Project Location The Ahukini Makai Subdivision is proposed on a 171.869-acre (69.4-
hectare) TMK (4) 3-7-002:001 parcel of fallow, former sugarcane land 
in makai (seaward) Hanama'ulu Ahupua'a on southeast Kaua'i just 
southwest ofHanama'ulu Bay and approximately 2.0 km northeast of 
the county capital, Lihu'e. On the northwest side the proposed Ahukini 
Makai Subdivision is bounded by Kapule Highway and is roughly 
bounded on the southeast side by Ahukini Road which also bounds the 
south side. The north side is effectively bounded by deeply dissected 
Hanama'ulu Valley. The project area is depicted on a portion of the 
1996 Lihue and Kapaa U.S. Geological Survey (USGS) 7 .5-minute 
topographic quadrangles (Figure 1) as well as several other maps and 
aerial photographs. An approximately 32.84 acre (13.29 hectare) 
Remainder of parcel 001 will not be developed but will remain in 
conservation (see Ahukini Makai Subdivision map, Figure 4). 

Project Description Visionary LLC is proposing to construct industrial lots and supporting 
infrastructure for an Ahukini Makai Subdivision. A subdivision map is 
provided (Figure 5). Development will involve grading and excavation 
for utilities, roads, industrial sites, and landscaping. 

Project Acreage Approximately 170 acres 

Document Purpose The Kaua'i County Planning Department has indicated a need for Ka 
and Regulatory Pa'akai Assessment studies to attend applications for Planning 

Context Department processing. The Planning Department has kindly supplied a 
Kaua'i Planning Department Worksheet for Ka Pa'akai Assessment 
which is regarded here as the guiding document. 

The purpose of the present Ka Pa'akai Analysis and Assessment is to 
assist the client and the Kaua'i Planning Department in their effort to 
I) ensure the applicant has sufficiently assessed that the proposed
project/action will not harm traditional and customary practices
exercised by Native Hawaiians; and 2) to provide sufficient
documentation to support the applicant's assessment.

This work is designed to address the letter and spirit of the following: 

Ka Pa'akai Analysis for the Ahukini Makai Subdivision Project, Hanama'ulu, Lihu'e, Kaua'i 

TMK: (4) 3-7-002:001 



Cultural Surveys Hawai'i Job Code: HANAMAULU 15 Management Summary 

Results of 

Background 

Research 

• Ka Pa'akai O Ka'aina v. Land Use Commission
(94 Hawai'i 31), in which the Hawai'i Supreme Court
established a three-part analytical framework to assist the
state and counties in fulfilling their constitutional obligation
to preserve and protect traditional and customary practices
(TCP ["TCP" is used here as it is used in the Kaua 'i
Planning Department Worksheet for Ka Pa 'akai
Assessment to refer to "traditional and customary practices])
exercised by Native Hawaiians, to the extent feasible, and

The mandate set forth by the Hawai'i State Constitution (Articles IX and 
XII), courts, Hawai'i Revised Statutes (HRS), and Hawai'i 
Administrative Rules (HAR) and other Hawai'i State laws requiring 
government agencies to promote and preserve cultural beliefs, practices, 
and resources of Native Hawaiians and other ethnic groups. 

Background research for this study yielded the following results, 
presented in approximate chronological order: 

1. The original moku (district) for the study area covered in this
report was Puna, which means "spring of water." Lihu'e (literally
translated as "cold chill;" Pukui et al. 1974: 132) became the
modern political name for the traditional moku of Puna. According
to Ethel Damon (1931 :402), the name Lihu' e was first applied to
this area by Kaikio'ewa, Governor of Kaua'i in the 1830s, perhaps
after Kaikio'ewa's upcountry residence on the island. This late
derivation of the name has been recently disputed (Griffin
2012:46).

2. The project area is in the ahupua 'a (traditional land division
usually extending from the mountains to the sea) of Hanama'ulu.
The ahupua 'a name means "tired (as from walking) bay" (Pukui et
al. 1974:41). Wichman (1998:61) relates that Hanama'ulu Bay was
given this name because it was "off the main around-the-island
trail and a traveler had to walk extra miles to get there."

3. Very little is documented regarding traditional settlement patterns
at Hanama'ulu prior to the documentation of native tenant claims
following the Mahele land division of 1848. A few authors that
have attempted historical study of the ahupua 'a (Kalima and
Wong Smith in Corbin et al. 2002:8-1 through B-12, Creed
2006:6-28) are easily distracted by the wealth of data pertaining to
Wailua Ahupua'a up the coast. "Few sources refer specifically to
Hanama'ulu and the information contained in them is general in
nature" (Kalima and Wong Smith in Corbin et al. 2002:8-1).

4. There are relatively few ka 'ao or legends pertaining to
Hanama'ulu and the references in most accounts like that of the
volcano goddess Pele, her lover Lohi'au, and the cultural hero
Kawelo are somewhat in passing. The suggestion of inhospitality

Ka Pa'akai Analysis for the Ahukini Makai Subdivision Project, Hanama'ulu, Lihu'e, Kaua'i 

TMK: (4) 3-7-002:001 
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DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING 

KA'AINA HULL, DIRECTOR

JODI A. HIGUCHI SAYEGUSA, DEPUTY DIRECTOR

I. SUMMARY

Action Required by 

Planning Commission: 

SUBDIVISION REPORT 

DEREK SJ<. KAWAKAMI, MAYOR 

REIKO MATSUYAMA, MANAGING DIRECTOR 

Consideration of Subdivision Application No. 5-2023-3 
involving a five (5) lot subdivision. 

Subdivision Permit No. Application No. 5-2023-3 

Name of Applicant(s) VISIONARY, LLC. 

II. PROJECT INFORMATION

Map Title Consolidation of Portion of Lot 1-A and Lot "A" Being Portions of Royal 
Patent 4480, Land Commission Award 7713, Apana 2, Part 1 to V. Kamamalu 
and Royal Patent 4481, Land Commission Award 7713, Apana 2, Part 7 to V. 
Kamamalu and Subdivision of Said Consolidation into Lots 1 Through 5 
Cancellation of Easements "A" and "E-1" and Designation of Easement 1 at 
Kalapaki, Hanama'ulu, Lihu'e, Kaua'i, Hawai'i. 

Tax Map Key(s): 3-6-002:001 / 3-6-002:011 I Area: j 132.45 Acres 

Zoning: Residential {R-8) / Residential (R-20) / General Commercial (C-G} 

State Land Use Urban 
I

General Plan 

I
Urban Center 

District(s): Designation: 

AGENCY COMMENTS 

[8'.j COK Public Works pending [8'.j State DOT-Highways: pending 
[8'.j COK Water: 01.25.2023 [8'.I State Health: 01.23.2023 
Oother: 0 DLNR - SHPD: 

EXISTING ROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY(S} 

Road Name Existing Required Pavement Reserve 
Width Width YES NO 

Kapule Highway/ Kauai Veterans Various 80 feet � □ 

Memorial Highway 
Ahukini Road Various 80 feet � □ 

Ka'ana Street 60 feet 60 feet � □ 

Ho'olako Street 60 feet 60 feet � □ 

APPLICABLE FEES 

Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) To be resolved 
Park Dedication To be resolved 

Appraisal Report Required N/A 

G.1.a.1.
Jan. 9, 2024



















































































































































































































































































































































DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING 

KA'AINA HULL, DIRECTOR

JODI A. HIGUCHI SAYEGUSA, DEPUTY DIRECTOR

DEREK S.I<. KAWAKAMI, MAYOR 

REIKO MATSUYAMA, MANAGING DIRECTOR 

I. SUMMARY

Action Required by

Planning Commission:

Subdivision Permit No. 

Name of Applicant(s) 

II. PROJECT INFORMATION

SUBDIVISION REPORT 

Consideration of Subdivision Application No. S-2024-4 
involving a two (2) lot consolidation and re-subdivision 
into four (4) lots. 

Application No. S-2024-4 

GEORGE AND PATRICIA SOUZA TRUST 
KEVIN AND MONIQUE SOUZA LIVING TRUST 

Map Title Consolidation of Lots 1-A and 2-A Being Grant S-14,448 Wailua Homesteads, 
First Series and Resubdivision of Said Consolidation into Lots 1 to 4, Inclusive 
at Wailua, Kawaihau, Kaua'i, Hawai'i. 

Tax Map Key(s): 4-2-010: 012, 059 I Area: j 8.58 Acres 

Zoning: Residential District (R-2) / Open District {O) 

State Land Use Rural 

I
General Plan 

I
Residential Community 

District(s): Designation: 

AGENCY COMMENTS 

� COK Public Works 11.15.2023 0 State DOT-Highways: 

[8J COK Water: 12.15.2023 [8J State Health: pending 

D COK Housing: 11.02.2023 [8J DLNR - SHPD: pending 

EXISTING ROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY(S) 

Road Name Existing Required Pavement Reserve 
Width Width YES NO 

'Opaeka'a Road 40 feet 56 feet C8I □ 8 ft.

Kalili Place 30 feet 40 feet C8I □ 5 ft.

□ □ 

APPLICABLE FEES 

Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) $750.00 

Park Dedication $600.00 

Appraisal Report Required N/A 

G.1.b.1.
Jan. 9, 2024



Ill. EVALUATION 

The proposal involves a two (2) lot consolidation and re-subdivision into four (4) lots within 
the County Residential District (R-2) and Open District (O), and within the State Land Use Rural 
District. The surrounding parcels to the north are within the County Agriculture (Ag) zoning 
district, while the surrounding parcels to the south, east, and west are within the County 
Residential (R-2) zoning district and Open District (0). The surrounding parcels are developed 
with single-family residences. 

The subject property is located in Wailua Homesteads and abuts 'Opaeka'a Road on its 
northern boundary and Kai iii Place on its southern boundary. It should be noted that there is 
one (1) existing dwelling on the northwestern side of the property that currently obtains 
vehicular access from 'Opaeka'a Road and two (2) existing dwellings on the southern side of 
the property that currently obtain vehicular access from Kalili Place. In reviewing the proposal, 
Lots 1 and 2 will continue to utilize vehicular access from Kalili Place and Lots 2 and 3 will 
continue to utilize vehicular access from 'Opaeka'a Road. 

'Opaeka'a Road has a present right-of-way width of forty (40) feet and Kali Ii Place has a 
present right-of-way width of thirty (30) feet which are not up to the current County 
standards of fifty-six (56) feet for a Collector Street classification and forty (40) feet for a dead
end street classification, respectively. As such, a future road widening reserve shall be 
established along the frontages of the proposed lots. 

The subject property was previously reviewed through two prior subdivision applications. 
Namely, Subdivision Application No. S-2000-3 that received final subdivision approval by the 
Planning Commission on April 27, 2000, that involved a two-lot subdivision, and Subdivision 
Application No. S-2011-12 that received final subdivision approval by the Planning 
Commission on January 25, 2012, and involved a two-lot boundary adjustment. In reviewing 
Subdivision Application No. S-2000-3, the EIA and Park Dedication Fees were deferred until 
such time the subject property is further developed. As such, the assessment of an EIA Fee 
and Park Dedication Fee will be a requirement of this subdivision application and shall be paid 
prior to final subdivision approval. 

Native Hawaiian Traditional and Cultural Rights 

Attached as Exhibit 'A' is a letter from the applicant pertaining to the requirement of a 
Ka Pa'akai O Ka'aina Analysis for the subject property. 

IV. RECOMMENDATION

TENTATIVE APPROVAL 

,. 

�Approval 
□ Denied

S-2024-4; Subdivision Report
George & Patricia Souza Trust Et Al.
01.09.2024

FINAL APPROVAL 

□ Approval
□ Denied

21P a g e































G.1.c.1.
Jan. 9, 2024
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